     Questions and Answers to IV&V DRFP and Pre-Solicitation Conference
            NOTE:  The concerns expressed about the disparate amounts of information
            available to incumbents verus non-incumbents were analyzed and  understood.  All
            of the current RTOs will be replaced with new RTOs that represent IV&V efforts
           which have not been performed by the incumbents.   Once the new RTOs are posted, 
           please submit any remaining questions concerning the RTOs at that time.  Questions 
           numbered 1 through 16 below were questions submitted in reference to the RTOs for 
           review.  Answers to questions regarding all topics with the exception of the RTOs are 
           annotated in bold after the question itself.  If a question has not been answered
           satisfactorily, please ask it again so that we may provide clarification.  The responses 
           to several questions not reflected in this document are still being researched and will 
           be posted separately.  
1. RTOs: Sample tasks, this was discussed at the meeting. Perhaps a fictional mission could be created and used. Then use the same mission and put a human on-board. I suggest you

      consider a two-part sample task or some other sample task where particular domain 

            knowledge would not be a disadvantage to non-incumbents.

2.  RTOs:  The RTO responses are critical elements in NASA’s evaluation of the offeror’s
             capabilities to successfully meet all of the IV&V requirements and objectives and
             to ensure selection of low-risk, high-value awardees.  It is critical that RTOs be 
             selected that represent real world scenarios and offer sufficient artifacts to 
             establish an accurate BOE by which to evaluate offerors’ solutions.

3. RTOs:  Since there is no way to provide new bidders with the same technical information that the incumbents already have, or provide new bidders with the same amount of time to

      respond to the RTOs that incumbents have based on their access to RTO technical 

      information, is the government going to adjust the evaluation criteria to account for this

      significant differential between incumbents and new bidders?

4. RTOs: All three RTOs are projects currently being performed by incumbents.  Is it possible that theses are placeholders for RTOs in the final RFP?  If not, the current RTOs give incumbents a distinct advantage that cannot be overcome. By virtue of having already performed these tasks, incumbents have an inherent knowledge base that non-incumbents cannot have.  We recommend that the Government issue new RTOs for this DRFP that are generic or represent future work not currently assigned.  This will provide fair opportunity to all bidders. 

5. RTOs: Will contractors be afforded one-on-ones to ensure that we are afforded fair opportunity to obtain the information necessary to respond on the basis of complete and accurate information needed to scope, schedule and price RTOs? This is especially pertinent for non-incumbents who have not had the opportunity to know this information that is known to incumbents through their daily work.  Please note that all three RTOs are current incumbent IV&V tasks.

6. RTOs: Neither the DRFP nor the available reference documents provide sufficient engineering data and planning parameters needed to properly develop a basis of estimate and scope responses to the RTOs.  Will the government please provide, as a minimum, the following data for each RTO:

· Requirements and/or architectural and design information

· SW development information (functions, languages, size, data/control flows, use cases, etc.)

· Schedule information - SW Build/Release (so that we have the correct labor mix available at the appropriate times)

· All deliverables associated with each of current projects represented in the RTOs, in particular SDO and ISS.

      Only the incumbent would have the insight into the task, having performed work.  

7. RTOs: How do the list of tasks presented in Tables 4.1 through 4.8 of each RTO compare to current actual tasking being performed at the IV&V Facility at this time?

8. RTOs: Are the number and types (labor categories) of personnel currently on contract performing all the tasks listed in Tables 4.1 through 4.8 of each RTO at this time? How many personnel in which specific labor categories are currently supporting the RTO tasks?

9. RTOs: Independent testing is listed as an optional task under the ISS RTO.  Is this optional task currently being performed by the incumbent under the existing ISS task order?  Is this independent testing occurring at present?  If so, what specifically is being tested by the incumbent IV&V contractor?

10. RTOs: Throughout section 5.0 of the ISS RTO, some of the “schedule” and “audience” fields are not filled in.  Will this information be supplied in the final RFP?

11. RTOs: The RFP presents six paragraphs detailing specific information that the offeror is to provide in response to each of the three representative task orders.  Since each of the two incumbents knows whether their performance is satisfactory in the following six areas based on government feedback during the performance of these tasks, they know whether to propose activities that are similar or identical to how they are currently performing the work, or whether to make changes to what they are doing to satisfy the government.  This is information that other offerors are not aware of and provides an unfair advantage to the incumbents.  As long as the government intends to use representative task orders that are actually being performed at present, will the government provide answers to the following: 

a. Are the technical approaches/methods and tools being used by current contractors acceptable?  If not, why not?  

b. Are the staffing plans consistent with the technical approach and schedule, and proposed labor categories?

c. Are the schedules for completing the effort, including key milestones and the flow of activities from start to completion, satisfactory?  If not, why not?

d. Is the use of other resources necessary to successfully accomplish the tasks, such as facilities and equipment, satisfactory? If not, why not?

e. Have the identification of critical issues, including risk identification and mitigation, been satisfactory? If not, why not?

f. Have the lines of communication among contractor staff, IV&V Facility staff, and project staff been satisfactory? If not, why not?
12. RTOs: The government is asking the offerors to justify that the schedule they provide for the RTOs is realistic.  Are the current schedules relative to the actual task orders for the ISS and SDO work being performed by incumbents realistic? 

13. RTOs: The government is asking the offerors to propose locations for the staff working on the RTOs.  Are the current locations for existing staff on the actual task orders for the ISS and SDO work being performed by incumbents realistic/acceptable to the government?  What are the current staffing profiles and locations being used on the existing ISS and SDO task orders?  Will the government consider requesting RTOs be priced uniformly by all bidders with respect to performance at customer site or contractor site?

14. RTOs: The evaluation factors as they now stand provide an advantage to incumbents given their inherent knowledge gained from having performed IV&V projects for the Facility.  To make playing field more level, we recommend that the Government modify the evaluation factors so that incumbents’ inherent understanding provides no evaluated advantage.

15. RTOs: Using on-going RTO's gives the incumbents an unfair proposal advantage since they will possess "insider" knowledge not available (in the library) to all bidders.  What is the rationale for creating this incumbent advantage?  

16. RTOs: Since there is no way to provide new bidders with the same technical information that incumbents already have, or provide new bidders with the same amount of time to respond to the RTO's that incumbents have based on their access to RTO technical information, is the government going to adjust the evaluation criteria to account for this significant differential between incumbents and new bidders?  The revised schedule has been posted in NAIS on the Pre-Solicitation Conference Procurement Overview slides and in the bidders library.  
17.   In Section M.4.2, the weights and scoring for Subfactor A – Understanding the
              Requirement/Technical Approach is 500 points and for Subfactor B – Management
              Plan is 400 points.  However, the Subfactor A section includes three very substantial
              sub-sections, “OVERALL UNDERSTANDING AND TECHNICAL APPROACH”, 
              “CAPABILITIES”, and “REPRESENTATIVE TASK ORDERS”.  Note that the
              “CAPABILITIES” sub-section includes mostly “Personnel” information which is often
               included as a separate Subfactor.  Given the broad range of topics covered by Subfactor
               A, its weight seems lower than appropriate.  Please consider increasing the weight of
               Subfactor A to 600 points and reducing the weight of Subfactor B to 300 points or
               move the “Capabilities” discussion to Subfactor B, Management Plan.  The weights

              and scoring will remain the same.
18. Section B.4 states “The Government may issue tasks for a period of five (5) years
            from the effective date of the contract” and section B.6 states “the Contractor shall not
            be required to make any deliveries under this contract after one year from the end of
            the contract's effective period”.  Thus, it would appear that the maximum duration of a
            task order issued under this contract is six (6) years.  The previous contract had a
           period of performance lasting ten (10) years and many of the programs on which
           IV&V services will be performed last considerably longer than five (5) years.  Given
           that considerable effort will be expended by both the Government and the offerors in 
           conjunction with this RFP, please consider extending the period of performance for this 
           contract to ten (10) years.  It is correct that the maximum duration of the contract 

           could end up being 6 years.  Please refer to PIC 04-09 for guidance.  The

           "period of performance" terminology used in this question should read 

           "ordering period".
19. Sections B.4(c) and B.6(a), (b), and (c) refer to a “Schedule”.  What specifically is this referring to?  The schedule is listed in B.1 – Deliverable Requirements.  
20. In Section B.8, the offeror is to propose the “Maximum Available Award fee”.  Given that this is an IDIQ contract and thus the total contract value is unknown, what is intended to be proposed as the “Maximum Available Award fee”?  Should this be a maximum award fee percentage?  Or the total value of the award fee assuming orders reach the contract ceiling?

Refer to Federal Acquisition Regulations (FAR) Part 16.305 for guidance.  Section B.8 of the draft RFP states that the base fee is $0.  The award fee will be earned based on the number of award(s).
21. In Section F.2, it appears that there is a statement missing in paragraph (b).  What do items (1) and (2) refer to?  Items 1 and 2 explains what the Contracting Officer will do as a result of a Stop Work Order.
22. Section G.5 references the IV&V Performance Evaluation Plan but does not provide any further details on the contents and generation source.  Please provide further information on the IV&V Performance Evaluation Plan.  The Performance Evaluation Plan will be posted with the RFP.
23. There are two section H.14’s.  Please correct numbering.  The correction has been made.
24. Section L.14 specifies two CD-ROM copies of the cost/price proposal shall be submitted with the proposal. Section L.11 specifies a single copy.  Please clarify the correct number of electronic copies required for Volume III.  Two CD-ROM copies are required to be submitted.
25. Section L.14 specifies that the offeror is to submit one copy of the cost/price proposal to its cognizant DCAA office.  Section L.11 specifies two copies.  Please clarify the correct number of copies to be submitted to DCAA.  One copy is required to be submitted to DCAA.
26. Is Exhibit 3 to be included in the Mission Suitability volume.  It may contain proprietary benefits information.  Documents that are marked as being proprietary data will be protected.  Exhibit 3 should be included in the Mission Suitability Volume.
27. Is the Total Compensation Plan to be included in Mission Suitability volume.  It contains proprietary salary information.  Documents that are marked as being proprietary data will be protected.  The Compensation Plan should be included in the Mission Suitability Volume.
28. Section L.11(a)(5) states “The format for each proposal volume shall parallel,to the greatest extent possible, the format of the evaluation factors and subfactors contained in Section M of this solicitation” and section L.13.1 states “The full contents of this volume shall follow the organization of the sections that follow, and the content shall be as described in those sections”.  However, in several cases, the ordering of the evaluation criteria in Section M does not match that of the instructions in Section L.  For instance, the table below shows discrepancies between ordering in Section L and M for Subfactor A - Understanding the Requirement/Technical Approach:

	Section L Topics
	Section M Topics

	SOW
	Page 106, all 6 paragraphs
	SOW
	Page 125 last paragraph
Page 126 1st 2 paragraphs

	Staffing
	Page 107 1st paragraph
	Facilities
	Page 126 paragraphs 3 & 4

	TCP
	Page 108 all except last 
	RTO
	Page 126 5th paragraph on

Page 127 1st 2 paragraphs

	RTO
	Page 109 all except last
	Staffing
	Page 127 paragraphs 3 & 4

	
	
	TCP
	Page 127 last paragraph


In Subfactor B - Management Approach, the ordering of topics in Sections L and M is inconsistent in the following cases:

· The first paragraph in Section L has a broader scope than the first paragraph in Section M

· Section M includes two separate paragraphs concerning evaluation of the Risk Management Approach. The first follows Task Order Management and corresponds with the ordering of Topics in Section L. The second is on the top of page 130 and has no corresponding set of instructions in Section L.

· Section M includes at the bottom of page 130 an evaluation topic for OCI which is not identified at all in Section L.

                 Sections L&M are being reviewed/updated for consistency.
      29.   Multiple awards and IDIQ contracts effects the bid decision in several ways,

a. Cannot estimate the value of the award, is it worth bidding if there are four
      awards, three awards?  The Governments intent to is to award no more than

      three (3) contracts.
 

b. How does one estimate which subcontractor are "expected" to do more than

                      $5M? The amount of work awarded to the subcontractor is highly dependent

                      upon the amount of work the prime obtains which, in turn, depends somewhat

                      upon the number of awards.  The $5M presumes that they are awarded $2M.
 

c. The page limitation (past performance and other section) as well as price applies
      pressure to use the minimum small business subcontractor participation.  The page 

      limitation listed in the draft RFP will be revised in the RFP.

       30. It was stated that on-going IV&V projects are to be moved to the blanket contracts
      on the schedule presented. These are the present incumbents. Thus, upon award of
      "more than one" contracts there is no immediate work for a new contractor. Since all
       tasks (projects) will be awarded upon a competitive basis, a new contractor has no idea
       when or even if they will "win" any projects. This is acceptable in an area where there are
       a large number of employees with the necessary skills, e.g. the DC area. (It is easier to
             adjust to a rise and fall in staffing and to reassign personnel). A new contractor will have 
             to establish an office in WV, staff the WV office with a small staff capable of bidding the 
             IDIQ tasks. This is expensive.  First, to clarify the Governments plan.  The schedule 

             showed the end-dates for the IV&V efforts on the listed missions, not the dates for 

             transition to any contract.  The missions listed in the "Projects with Significant Time

             Remaining" table are projects which will be transferred onto the new contracts as 

             soon as possible.  Immediately after contract award, the Government will begin the 

             bidding process on task orders covering these projects, and continue as expeditiously 

             as possible until all are transferred.  The Government is also considering putting a 

            Contract Management Task Order in place with each awardee.
    31.    I would recommend that some work (tasks) be assigned at contract award and/or at least 
 award a Program Management Office Task Order to all companies selected. This would 
 cover the initial costs involved in biding for task orders. This would be in place of the 
 $100K in tasks that is assured sometime during the life of the contract.  The Government

  is considering putting a Contract Management Task Order in place with each 

  awardee.
32.       NAICS Code 541519 has been assigned to this solicitation. Does this prevent Small 
Disadvantaged Business whose revenue average over the last three years is higher than the
            21M  from being a sub on this RFP and its participation being counted has an SDB.  Size 

            standards are assigned to assist us in determining set-aside possibilities for the prime 

            contract only.
33.       The draft RFP states that the RTOs will be evaluated by comparing a proposed solution 
      and cost to a government prepared solution.  If the government wants to encourage unique 
      approaches and methods, will the government consider evaluating RTO solutions based 
      solely on their own merit, basis for cost, and cost realism WITHOUT making a percentage
 cost comparison to a pre-determined government solution?  It's a measure that the 

Government uses to prevent us from inadvertently comparing one contractors 

proposal to another.
34.      Although the government is willing to accept a small business percentage greater than 
      25% in a bidder's proposal, by reducing this from previously stated goals of up to 40%,
      bidders who wish to honor their informal agreements with existing team members will 
      incur a significant cost penalty on their bids (passthrough rates, fee on fee, etc.) compared 
      to bidders who cut their expected small business participation from 30 - 45% down to 25%
      to be cost competitive.  This will be at the expense of small business, especially West 
      Virginia small business that NASA has stated they are trying to encourage.  Is the
      government willing to consider increasing this 25% small business participation 
      percentage upwards to 30-45% in the final RFP to prevent hurting small businesses that 
      were originally in the plans of prospective bidders and who now might be either eliminated
      or vastly reduced in their participation?  All procurements over $100,000 are reviewed 

      by the GSFC Small Business Specialist, who after extensive research, recommends 

      goals. In this process, the Specialist considers many factors; some of which are how 

      many qualified offerors exist, their size and their capability.  In addition, 

      consideration was made for the previously experienced subcontracting goals and 

      their actuals.  In this instance, we also considered that we will have multiple contracts 

      resulting from the RFP and that we are including Make or Buy clauses to enable the 

     Government to verify what subcontracts are for.
35.     Small Business: Recent NASA IT solicitation—including Stennis ITS, UNITeS, ROME— 

          have required a significantly higher small business participation requirement than this 
          DRFP.  The current 25% small business requirement seems extremely low.  This level, if 
          unchanged, is detrimental to West Virginia small businesses, both those who have capably
         done IV&V work for the Facility in the past and those who have invested their energies in 
         preparing for this bid.  We understand that the 25% is a floor and that bidders are encouraged 
         to do more, but the real incentive to do more is not there. A disincentive exists since primes
         could be driven to a pricing strategy that reduces the participation of small businesses.  We 
         recommend that the Government increase the small business participation requirement to a 
         minimum of 40%.  This new minimum (40%) will encourage more meaningful small 
         business participation, including establishing mentor-protégé relationships.  The increased 
         level will benefit the Facility by establishing a local base of small businesses that possess 
         IV&V expertise.  This will better serve the future needs of IV&V Facility.  See answer to 
         #34 above.
36. Transitioning Work to the New Contract: A large body of the work to be supported under the new IV&V contract is currently supported by incumbents.  For example, the Shuttle and Space Station projects represent a substantial portion of the contractor support to the Facility.  To fairly distribute the work under the new contracts, how does the Facility anticipate transitioning this work to the winning contractors?  See answer to #30 above.
37. There is a disproportionate level of detail for the Mission Suitability subfactor scoring.  Subfactors A (Understanding the Requirement/Technical Approach) and B (Management Plan) are valued at 500 and 400 points respectively while Subfactors C (Safety and Health) and D (Small Disadvantaged Business Participation) are valued at 50 points each.  We request that the Government break down Subfactors A and B into their elements (with point allocation for each) so that we can better understand the relative importance of the information required.  This request is contrary to NASA policy.  Subfactors A and B as they are currentlt give us the flexibility to discriminate between the offerors for the Source Selection Authority (SSA).
38. The scope of the statement of work makes reference to other Federal State and local government agency software to be tested.  Is there a history of this and, if so, what other entities have been supported.  Are there any previous or present relationships?  There are no present nor previous relationships that we are aware of.
39. Bidders are limited to 25 pages to discuss both prime and subcontractor past performance.  This appears to put prime contractors with larger teams at a disadvantage.  We recommend that the Government allocate additional pages to provide subcontractor past performance.  The page limitations will be increased in the RFP.
40. Acquisition Schedule: What is the acquisition schedule:  RFP release?  Proposal submission?   Award?   First task order?  Please check NAIS or the bidders library for updated information.
41. Acquisition Strategy: The DRFP indicates that the government plans to make multiple awards.  How many awards are anticipated?  Do you anticipate awarding a prime contract to a small business?  This information is needed to make a business case for bidding this opportunity?  The Governments intent is to award no more than 3 contracts.
42. How will the performance requirements, and applicable performance standards, be defined
         for each task order?  They will be included in each task order.

43. Should the Offeror propose not to exceed rates inclusive of fee or exclusive of fee?  
   The Offeror should propose not to exceed rates inclusive of fee.
44. Should the Offeror propose not to exceed rates inclusive of indirect costs or exclusive of
      indirect costs?  The Offeror should propose not to exceed rates inclusive of indirect 
      costs.
45.  Should the Offeror propose Subcontractor rates inclusive or exclusive of fee?  The 
 Offeror should propose not to exceed Subcontractor rates inclusive of fee.

46. As listed in the table on page 99, are the Cover Page, Indices, Past Performance 
   Questionnaires, List of Acronyms, and Deviations and Exceptions excluded from the page 
   count?  They are excluded from the page count.
47. In Section L.14(b) Basis of Estimates (BOE) Processes and Methodologies, there is a 
   bolded reference to L.16(b) which does not appear in the draft RFP document.  Can you 
   please provide the correct reference for this statement.  The correct reference is L.14(b).
48. The second paragraph of Section L.15(b), Past Performance Questionnaires, indicates that 
"the Offeror completes the questionnaire and submits it directly to the NASA Goddard
 Space Flight Center..."  Is it correct to interpret that the questionnaires shall be sent directly 
 by the Offeror's references to NASA and, therefore, will not be included in the past 
 performance volume?  Our intent is to have the questionnaires sent to the references
 who will foward them to NASA Goddard Space Flight Center.  The questionnaires 
 will not be included in the past performance volume.

49. Section M.3.2 Evaluation Factors and Subfactors implies that there are three evaluation 
factors:  (1) Mission Suitability, with four subfactors; (2) Cost/Price Evaluation and; (3)
Past Performance.  However, Section M.7, page 134, refers to the Make or Buy Evaluation
Factor.  As the Make or Buy Evaluation Factor will not be point scored, what is its relative
importance with respect to the three aforementioned factors?  The Make or Buy is not a 
separate evaluation factor.  It will be part of the Management Plan and revised in the 
RFP accordingly.
50.   Section M.4.1 Subfactor A (first full paragraph) references completed Attachment B 
        matrices.  Is this information to appear in Volume II or Volume III of the proposal 
        response?  The information should appear in Volume II.

51. Given the clarifications and additional information provided today, would you consider
      extending the due date (7/28/04) for draft RFP questions/comments?  No formal 
      extension will be given.  However, we will accept questions as they are asked.  Keep   

 in mind, however, that the later you ask a questions, involves the risk that it may not
       be answered due to time constraints.  We encourage questions be asked sooner 
       rather than later.

52. Will the IV&V contractor have access to the Planning and Scoping contractor when 
 bidding new task orders?  The answer is yes, but the contractor will have to go 
 through the Contracting Officer to ensure fair access to all.

53. Will there be "one on ones" with Government SME's?  Our current position is no until
 the acquisition process is complete.
54. Will the charts be posted on the website?  The pre-solicitation conference charts are 
 posted in NAIS and in the bidders library.

55.  I had hoped that a discussion of some current projects and their progress would be
 presented.  Will there be an opportunity to obtain this kind of information?  The      Governments position is that contractors don't require this information to bid. 

 Please tell us if this is not the case.
56. Will you post the list of participants for the Industry Day?  The list of attendees are posted
        in NAIS.

